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STATE OF NEW YORK )

: 8S.!

COUNTY OF NEW YORK )
SIMCON H, RIFXIND, being sworn, states:

1. I am a member of the Board of Directors of

Defendant Revlon, Inc. I submit this affidavit in Opposition.

to plaintiff's motion for a preliminary injunction.

Preliminary Matters

2. I am a member of the New York City law firm of
Paul, Weiss, Rifkind, Wharton & Garrison. I have been a
member of the ;egal profession for nearly 60 years. I am the
senior-most member of Revlon's Board, having first been
elected in 1956. I also have served on the boards of other
corporations, including MacAndrews & Forbes Holdings. As
described below, I resigned from the MacAndrews & Forbes
Board in connection with Pantry Pride's takeover effort.
buring my career, I have advised many corporate clients on
the responsibilities of directors and officers to corporate
shareholders. A further summary of my background is set
forth in my Martindale-Hubbell biography, a copy of which is
annexed as Exhibit G to this affidavit.

3. I have been asked by Revlon's counsel to
describe in this affidavit the process by which the Board

arrived at its decisions with respect to various Pantry Pride

offers to acquire Revlon and the agreement of October 12,




1985 with Forstmann Little. As this Court is aware, the
future of a major corporation is at stake here, and the
cutcome will touch the lives of thousands ¢f shareholders and
employees, For me to describe fully the many hours that have
been devoted to Revlon Board meetings since August would, I
fear, tax the Court's patience. I shall therefore attempt
below only to summarize highlights. For the Court's benefit,
I am annexing copies of the following draft minutes of Board
meetings:

Ex. Meeting Date

August 19
August 26
September 25
Octcber 1
October 3
October 12

MO0 W e

I have reviewed this material in preparation of this affida-
vit, and I believe that the draft minutes are substantially
accurate.

4, At the outset, I wish to state that I have no
bias against Pantry Pride, Ronald Perelman, or MacAndrews &
Forbes. On the contrary, I served on MacAndrews & Forbes'
Board for many years, until Pantry Pride's tender offer for
Revlon. I have only affection for my friend, Mr. Perelman,
and I do not enjoy being in an adversarial position with him.

But I take my fiduciary duties as a director seriously. I

voted to approve the Forstmann Little offer because, in my




business judgment as a director, I believed, and still
believe, it clearly is in the best interests of Revlon's
shareholders,

5. In terms of my decision, the nub of the matter
is that, in nearly two months of bidding for Revlon, Pantry
Pride never made an offer that approaches the Forstmann
Little offer in value. At the time that Forstmann Little
stepped in, Pantry Pride was pressing a tender for Revlon at
$42 per share -- down from its original offer of $47.50 per
share and roughly $450 million less than the eventual
Forstmann Little offer. Pantry Pride increased its offer
only after learning that Revlon was‘negotiating with
Forstmann Little, and it has conditioned every offer above
$42 a share on Revlon's Board withdrawing not only the Note
Purchase Rights, but also covenants designed to protect the
value of $475 million in Revlon notes issued to shareholders
in the Revlon exchange offer. Pantry Pride's last offer not
only contained the same conditions, but also is $1 per share
less than Forstmann Little's offer -- nearly $30 million less
in total. Pantry Pride's last offer also does not assure
that Revlon's 11.75% notes, exchanged in part earlier for 25%
of its shares, will be exchanged for new notes that will sell
at par. This was a matter of major concern to the Board.
Because of the prospect of a transaction that would increase

Revion's debt, the Notes have sold for as low as $87.




Forstmann Little has agreed to exchange the Notes for new
notes that would sell at par. This provision is worth over
$60 million ($475 x $13, the market price discount from par),
and, when added to the $1 per share that Forstmann Little
agreed to pay over Pantry Pride's last offer, made the
Forstmann Little offer worth $100 million more than that of
Pantry Pride.

6. The economic superiority of the Forstmann
Little offer from the standpoint of Revlon's shareholders was
not the only fact that militated toward acceptance. As a
director, I was deeply concerned that if the Forstmann Little
offer were not accepted, and if Forstmann Little withdrew
from the field as it indicated it would, Revlon's share-
holders would be at the mercy of Pantry Pride. This concern,
shared by all the Directors, is well grounded in the history
of Pantry Pride's shifting offers.

7. If the competition from Forstmann Little were
to end, my best business judgment was that Pantry Pride would
have every incentive to reduce, not raise, its price -- as it
did not hesitate to do in the past when it reduced its
original offer from $47.50 to $42 after Revlon's exchange
offer. Revlon would be without bargaining power to protect

its sharehoiders and 11.75% Noteholders.

8. ©Prior to receiving Forstmann Little's proposal

at the October 12 meeting, Revlon refused to give Forstmann




Little anv lock up option on Revlon's assets, even when
approving Forstmann Little's earlier $56 per share merger
offer. Indeed, Revlon expressly reserved the right to
consider better offers. No such proposals appeaied. Pantry
Pride increased the $56 offer by only $0.25, and had made
clear that it would continually counter Forstmann Little's
bids with only the most marginal increases: Pantry Pride
also had failed to take any steps to assure that our note-
holders would receive a par value instrument. 1In these
circumstances, I concluded that it was not simply
appropriate, but imperative, for the protection of Revlon's
shareholders and noteholders to accept Forstmann Little's
proposal at the October 12 Board meeting, with provision for
an option on two Revlon divisions. Forstmann Little's
insistence on a conditional lock-up option was a small price
to pay for the nearly $100 million premium that Forstmann
Little was offering over the Pantry Pride offer.

9. I advocated and voted for the Forstmann Little
proposal with the conviction that, as directors, we had fully
discharged our duties to protect the shareholders and to
enhance their investment, and that the Forstmann Little
agreement was fair and reasonable.

10. In carrying out our responsibilities, I and

the other Revlon Board members were advised throughout by

Felix Rohatyn of the investment banking firm of Lazard Freres




& Company. I have known Mr. Rohatyn for years. He and I
labored together nearly a decade agc to save New York City
from bankruptcy, and we served together on the New York State
Municipal Assistance Corporation, an agency that he was
instrumental in fashioning to rescue the City. I know Mr.
Rohatyn to be an individual of uncommon intelligence, judg=
ment, and integrity. Throughout the Pantry Price-Forstmann
Little situation, I valued his advice, recommendations, and
reasoning, as did the other members of Revlon's Board. I
also listened carefully to Forstmann Little's presentations
and to the views of Revlon's other Directors.

11, Among Revlon's Board members is Lewis L.
Glucksman -- a former head of the investment banking firm of
Lehman Brothers. Mr, Glucksman is an astute and
sophisticated businessman. He was represented by his own
counsel. I listened to Mr., Glucksman, as he explained why he
believed that the Forstmann Little offer was appropriate and
fair to Revlon's shareholders. So did the other Board
members.

12, At the conclusion of Revlon's October 12 Board
meeting, I told those present that I regretted our not
having a tape recorder there. I said that because I felt the
meeting demonstrated what the business judgment rule is all
about, I would have welcomed the opportunity to play a tape

of that meeting for the Court. The Board members considered




the Pantry Pride and Forstmann Little alternatives, discussed
realistically attainable modifications of them, evaluated the
pros and cons to the shareholders and noteholders of various
courses of action -- and we made a decision based on what we
believed was right for the shareholders. Reasonable minds might
differ on the matter; in our imperfect werld, perfect solu-
tions are rare indeed, and certainly there could be no
perfect solution in a situation as complex as this one. For
me, the break up of the company was most unwelcomed. But the
decision was an informed one, made by conscientious busi-
nessmen, seeking to protect the interests of Revlon's thou-
sands of corporate shareholders. The meeting, in my experi-
ence, epitomized the exercise of business judgment.

13. That meeting was the culmination of a process
that sheould serve as a model df corporate governance. The
proof of the pudding is what we achieved == a price for the
shareholders that is more than $10 a share (over 20%) above
Pantry Pride's original bid and more that $15.25 above the
modified bid. At every Board meeting, we struggled to reach
decisions, based on the best information and advice available
to us, which would protect the interests of the shareholders
that we were elected to serve. At no time did Revlen manage-
ment put its own interests above those of the shareholders.
Indeed, rather than permit our efforts to be tarnished by

conflict of interest charges -- arising from misinformation

y




_. Michel Bergerac withdrew himself and his management from
participation in the Forstmann Little offer -- an act which,
so far as I am aware, is unprecedented in a leveraged buy-out.

Events on Auqust 19 Prior to the Board Meeting

14, Revlon's Board met on August 19, The Board
meeting occurred amidst takeover rumors and heavy public
stock trading activity during the prior week. Earlier that
same day, my partner Arthur Liman and I had met with
Mr. Perelman. During that meeting, Mr., Perelman, expressed
an interest in purchasing two of Revlon's divisions and
sought from Revlon a proposed price range as an indication of
Revlon's good faith. Mr., Perelman made clear that Pantry
Pride was prepared to make a hostile tender offer for Revlon,
and he would not commit to withdrawing that threat even if
Revlon undertook to try to negotiate with him a price for the
two divisions that he wanted. Because of Mr. Perelman's
refusal to withdraw his takeover threat, I had resigned the
day before as a Director of MacAndrews & Forbes.

15, Mr. Liman telephoned Mr, Perelman Jjust before
the Board met to attempt to elicit a price from Mr. Perelman.
While Mr. Perelman was not willing to say so, he indicated a
formula based on a multiple of earnings that would yield a
Price of $300 - $400 million for Revlon's Beauty Products

Division. By contrast, Lazard Freres believed that, if sold

under proper circumstances, this same Division might realize




almost $1 billion -- a price that Mr. Perelman scoffed at
(although we eventually did realize a price of $900 million).
Mr. Perelman's intentions were clear to every member of the
Board: he wanted to buy Revlon at a wholesale price, sell
the parts that he did not want at retail prices, and end up
with the Beauty Products Division for a bargain price -- all

at the expense of Revlon's sharsholders,

The August 19 Board Meeting (Ex. A)

1s6. Revlon's August 19 Board meeting covered many
matters relating to whét we believed was Pantry Pride's
imminent takeover bid. Briefly, Mr. Liman and I reported our
contacts that day with Mr. Perelman. Michel Bergerac,
Revlon's Chairman, also described his own recent contacts
with Mr. Perelman. He explained that Mr. Perelman was
proposing $42 or $43 per share to acquire Revlon on a nego-
tiated basis, and $45 per share if a hostile tender offer
were necessary. Lazard Freres made a presentation concerning
Pantry Pride, and reviewed their own evaluation of Revlon's
financial worth.

17. There was a unanimous consensus at the meeting
that Mr. Perelman's price levels were far tco low. It also
was clear that Pantry Pride did not have the financial
resources to finance an acgquisition of Revlon on any long

term basis, but would instead have to sell off Revlon opera-
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tions to retire debt incurred to make tha acquisition. Thus,
Mr. Perelman's intention, we concluded, was simply to buy
Revlon for a cheap price, dispose of its less profitable
operations, retain certain more attractive operations, and
‘'realize a substantial profit -- all at the expense of Rev-
lon's public shareholders, who would be pressured to tender
at a price substantially below the value of their holdings.
Accordingly, the Board concluded that steps should be taken
to protect the shareholders.

18. At the meeting, the Board: (a) authorized
Revlon, in conjunction with Lazard Freres, to develop a
program to enhance stockholder values; (b) authorized dis-
cretionary open-market purchases of up to 5 million Revlon
shares; and (c) declared a dividend in the form of "Note
Purchase Rights."

19, In the takeover world, the Note Purchase
Rights are often referred to as a "poison pill." Here, in
substance, Revlon granted to its shareholders the right to
exchange one share of common stock for a Revlon note in the
amount of $65, with interest at 12%. These exchange rights
(the "Rights") would be triggered only if someone such as
Pantry Pride acquired 20% of Revlon's shares by offering less
than $65 per share. The Rights also were redeemable under

certain circumstances and included many other provisions that

I will not detall here.
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20. I had never before voted for a poison pill
device or advocated its use. Frankly, I find the concept
personally distasteful. But I argued in favor of the proposal
at the Board meeting because the alternative was even worse.
I did not wish to see Revlon's stockholders suffer, while
Mr. Perelman made a handsome profiﬁ by dismantling the
company. In my view, Revlon's assets belonged to its
shareholders, not to a liquidator, and the Board was acting
reasonably to ensure the value of the shareholders' invest-
ment. Moreover, given Mr., Perelman's thin financing,rl
believed shareholders would feel coerced to tender to avoid
being left with holdings in a financially unsound company.
The poison pill gave Revlon bargaining power and time to find
a competing bidder. Without it, Revlon probably would have

been acquired at Pantry Pride's initial price.

The August 26 Beoard Meeting (Ex. B)

21. On August 23, Pantry Pride announced its first
offer at $47.50 per share, subject to various conditions.
One was that Revlon redeem the Rights. Another was that
Pantry Pride secure the financing needed for the offer. The
Revlon Board met again on August 26,

22, Based primarily on the Lazard Freres presenta-
tion a week earlier and on its follow-up evaluation at this

meeting, the Board determined that Pantry Pride's offer was




inadequate. We further considered a request by Pantry Pride
that the Rights be redeemed. We rejected it because the

Rights had been declared to protect the shareholders against
the very type of inadequate offer that Pantry Pride had made.

23. The Board also considered further steps in
response to Pantry Pride's takeover bid, this time an
exchange offer by Revlon, made to its shareholders, After
discussion, the Board adopted the Exchange Offer. Its
essence was as follows.

24. Revlion offered to purchase up to 10 million
shares of its common stock in exchange for a package of notes
and preferred stock, having a total face value of $57.50,
Each common share would be exchanged for: {(a) a note in the
principal amount of $47.50, with a coupon rate of 11.75% (the
"11.75% Notes"); and (b} 1/10th of a share of convertible
preferred stock, with a dividend of $9.00 and a face amount
of $100 (the "$9 Preferred Stock"). Lazard Freres explained
that it had designed this package so that the securities
would trade approximately at their face value after full
distribution,

25, These securities thus were intended to offer
the shareholders a premium over the market price for at least
a portion of their Revlon holdings, while also making a
hostile takeover more difficult, The 11.75% Notes, for

example, contained covenants precluding incurrence of addi-

‘I | -
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tional corporate debt, most asset sales, and most dividend-
type payments, unless such transactions were approved by the
"Independent Directors.” The $9 Preferred Stock also con-
tained covenants restricting debt incurrence that was not
approved by the Independent Directors.

26. The concept of Independent Director approval,
contained in the Exchange Offer, is an important one, Let me
therefore describe it further. The term "Independent Direc-
tors" embraced, in substance, the non-management members of
Revlon's current board, and elected successors whom they had
nominated. These particular individuals retained specific
authority to waive covenants in the securities to be
exchanged in order to vest important decision-making respon-
sibility in persons other than Revlon management. They were
given these powers to protect the shareholders and those whe
wound up holding securities issued in the Exchange Offer.

27, Besides the Exchange Offer, the Board also
authorized the sale of assets of approximately $250 million

to increase equity and reduce debt.

Events Throughout September

28. Revlon's Exchange Offer began a few days after

the August 26 meeting and continued until September 12. The

Offer was oversubscribed, and 10 million shares =- the
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maximum number provided for -- were accepted. In exchange,
Revlon issued $475 million in 11.75% Notes and 1 million
shares of $9 Preferred Stock. Pantry Pride withdrew its
cutstanding $47.50 offer and publicly announced its intention
to make a new offer at a reduced price of $42 per share.
After review and discussion at a September 24 Board meeting,
Revlon's directors concluded that Pantry Pride's second offer
was inadequate. (Ex. C}

29. With the announcement of Pantry Pride's second
cffer, both I aﬁd other Board members became concerned that
it might not be possible for Revlon to remain independent.
There was a significant likelihood that Pantry Pride would
persist, and alternatives that might enable the shareholders
to realize a higher price needed to be explored. Thus,
Lazard Freres heightened its efforts to find an alternative
to Pantry Pride,

30. On September 27, Mr. Perelman sent Mr. Bergerac
a letter, expressing an interest in a merger whereby Revlon's
shareholders would receive $50 per share. This overture,
however, was conditioned on Revlon redeeming the Rights, and
on its Independent Directors waiving various restrictive
covenants in the securities issued in the Exchange Offer., 1If
these provisions were waived, the value of the newly issued

securities would fall sharply. On October 1 -- just minutes

before the Board met =-- Mr, Perelman increased the Pantry
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Pride proposal to $53 per share, conditioned on Revlon

approving it that very night at its Board meeting.

The Octcber 1 Bcard Meeting (Ex. D)

31. At the October 1 Board meeting, Lazard Freres,
Mr. Bergerac, and others reported on the prevailing state of
affairs. As noted above, Pantry Pride was demanding an
immediate approval of its $53 proposal. 1In addition, how-
ever, Mr. Bergerac reported that significant discussions were
on-going to accomplish a leveraged buyout at a price that
would enable the shareholders to realize more than $53 per
share. Further, Mr. Bergerac explained that he had met that
day with a major American corporation that also was interested
in acquiring Revlon.

32. I can only describe the report to the Board as
bittersweet. We had begun with a Pantry Pride proposal in
the low $40's, and now we could see the real possibility of a
transaction in which the shareholders would be paid more than
$53. We had succeeded in preventing a cheap sale of the
company. But, at the same time, there was a sSOrrow in the
realization that Revlon -- as we had come to know it == might
very well cease to exist. The Board made no decision on the

course of future events that day, but we adjourned knowing

full well that one was imminent.
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The October 3 Board Meeting (Ex. E)

33. The October 3 Board meeting involved presenta-
tion and consideration of a specific alternative to the Pan-
try Pride offer. The alternative was in the form of proposals
by Forstman Little and Adler & Shaykin., Their proposals, in
summary, are discussed below.

(a) The Forstmann Proposal

34. Theodore Forstmann, the Chairman of Forstmann
Little, summarized his firm's proposal to purchase all
Revlon's shares for $56 per share in cash. He explained
that, in connection with the transaction, Forstmann Little
would assume the $475 million debt arising from the 11.75%
Notes issued in the recent Exchange Offer. His proposal
further included a sale of Revlon's Norcliff Thayer and
Reheis Divisions to American Home Products for $335 million;
there also was to be a contemporanecus sale by Revlon of its
Beauty Products operations to Adler & Shaykin for approxi-
mately $900 million. Mr, Forstmann explained that his firm's
proposal was not conditioned on financing. He also described
that Forstmann Little would directly commit $445 million to
the transaction. The Forstmann Little investor group, he
explained, included pension funds for such corporations as
General Electric, Boeing, Standard 0il of Indiana, AT&T,

General Telephone, and Texas Industries, as well as Kemper

and Aetna Insurance,
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35. The Forstmann proposal further contemplated
that Mr. Bergerac and other management personnel would have
the opportunity to acquire an equity interest in the corpora-
tion that would survive the acquisition. Thus, the proposal
was structured in a form commonly referred to as a leveraged
buyout. As described below, Mr. Forstmann had suggested this
structure to assure continuity of management. He had used it
with success in other acquisitions,

(b) The Adler & Shavkin Proposal

36. Leonard Shaykin of Adler & Shaykin presented
his offer to purchase Revlon's beauty preducts operations for
roughly $900 million, He detailed his financing commitments
for the transaction and explained that members of the divi~-
sion's management would be given the opportunity to partici-
pate in the transaction. Mr. Shaykin alsc emphasized that he
was proposing a purchase directly from Revlen, which was not
contingent on the Forstmann Little proposal, although his
company's purchase would help Forstmann Little in financing

its transaction.

(¢} Mr, Perelman's Interest in
the Beauty Products Division

37. Martin Lipton, one of Revlon's attorneys, also
reported to the Board on a recent conversation with Mr.

Perelman's counsel, Joseph Flom. Mr. Flom stated that Mr.

Perelman sought principally to purchase Revlon's Beauty
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Products Division; if that could be achieved, Pantry Pride
would drop its tender offer. Although Mr. Flom did not offer
a price to Mr. Lipton, Mr. Liman informed the Board that he
had spoken with Mr, Perelman the day before. Based on that
discussion, Mr. Liman said he did not believe that

Mr. Perelman would pay a price that even approached the Adler
& Shaykin proposal.

{d) The Alternatives to Pantry Pride

38. Both before and after the presentations by
Messrs. Forstmann and Shaykin, there was extended discussion
of the proposals, as well as of Pantry Pride's offer. Two
significant aspects of Mr. Forstmann's proposal, insisted
upon by Revlon management, were the absence of any "lock-up"
option or any "no shop" clause., A "lock-up"” option would
have required Revlon to sell certain assets to Forstmann
Little if someone else made a higher offer. A "no shop"
clause would have prevented Revlon from considering other
acquisition alternatives. There had been hard negotiations
over both provisions, and Revlon management prevailed with
Forstmann Little not insisting on either one. As part of the
negotiating compromise, Revlon did, however, agree to give
Forstmann Little notice of any competing bids.

39. The Forstmann Little proposal also contem-

plated that Revlon would redeem the Rights issued in the

August Exchange Offer, Mr. Forstmann considered this essen-
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tial to avoid triggering exercise of the Rights at $65 per
share and substantially increasing Revlon's debt. However,
at the same time, Forstmann Little was prepared to permit a

similar redemption in connection with any other offer where

all stockholders received $56 or more in cash per share.
Again, the parties compromised by giving Mr. Forstmann a 10
day "window" before redemption in response to another offer .
so that his company could re-evaluate its own proposal.
Forstmann Little's proposal further included a $25 million
"break up" fee. This was intended to cover expenses if its
proposal were not consummated for reasons other than its own
nonperformance, Forstmann Little's proposal alsoc required
waiver of the‘covenants in the $9 Preferred Stock and 11.75%
Notes issued in the Exchange Offer. However, the Board
declined to take definitive action on that condition, pending
evaluation of all the circumstances.

40. As I noted earlier, I am only presenting the
Court with an overview of the Board meéting. The entire
meeting touched on many matters in great detail. I should
also emphasize that, during much of the discussion, Revlon's
management directors were not present. We voted on the
Forstmann Little and Adler & Shaykin proposals in their
absence, and the independent directors unanimously approved

the proposals. Upon the return cof the management directors
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to the meeting, a second vote was taken, and the result was
again unanimous approval,

41, Trading in Revlon's stock was promptly sus-
pended at the company's request. Later that day, Revlon

publicly annocunced the Board's action.

The October 12 Board Meeting (Ex. F)

42, Revlen's Board convened again on October 12 to
consider two matters arising after the October 3 meeting.
First, Mr., Perelman was proposing to increase Pantry Pride's
offer to $56.25 -- $0.25 more than the announced Forstmann
Little merger. Mr. Perelman's proposal, however, was condi-
tioned on a waiver of the covenants in the 11.75% Notes and
the $9 Preferred Stock. Since our meeting of October 3, the
Notes had dropped to as low as $87 =-- a decline of about $60
million below par. I was deluged with telephone calls from
irate holders who had exchanged shares for 11.75% Notes which
they believed would be worth pér, and who now saw a 13%
erosion in the value of their Notes, 1 and other directors
believed that we had a moral obligati&n to attempt to restore
the value of our holders' Notes. Seéond, Mr. Forstmann had
become concerned that Pantry Pride intended to counter any
increased Forstmann Little offer with a "nickel and dime"

increase of its own. Mr. Forstmann was not prepared to be a

"price leader" for Mr. Perelman to follow. Thus, Mr.
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Forstmann was unwilling to make a meaningful increase in his
offer unless he received a lock-up option.

43, As the meeting began, Mr. Bergerac announced
that a decision had been made that he and other management
would withdraw from any equity participation in the surviving
entity envisioned by the Forstmann Little proposal. This
decision was, of course, made because of rampant conflict of
interest charges that had appeared in the press. The accusa-
tions arose only because of the way Mr. Forstmann himself
wanted to structure his offer. Thus, the issue was a false
one. Mr. Bergerac wanted to eliminate it entirely. I can
only commend his sensitivity and dedication to the share-
holders in doing so.

44, Lazard Freres representatives described their
discussions with Forstmann Little., Forstmann Little proposed
to increase its price to $57.25 per share, which it repre-
sented to be its best offer. 1In return, it wanted a lock-up
option to purchase the Vision Care and National Health Labor-
atories Divisions of Revlon for $525 million if another
bidder prevailed.

45, In respense to Revlon's concern for the
holders of the 11.75% Notes, issued in the Exchange Offer,
Forstmann Little agreed to issue new notes in another exchange

offer. The new notes would bear an increased interest rate

and would be designed to trade at par. This proposal was
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intended to protect the 11.75% Noteholders. The 11.,75% Notes
already had fallen from par to a market price of about $87 or
$88, and a waiver of their covenants would be expected to
depress the Notes even more. Lazard Freres and Goldman,
Sachs (Forstmann Little's investment banker) had hammered out
specific terms for the new notes that Forstmann Little
proposed to exchange for the 11,75% Notes. 1In the opinion of
these two distinguished firms, the new notes would be worth
par.

46. Forstmann also had asked that Revion not waive
the covenants in the Exchange Offer securities, and that it
not redeem the Rights, for anyone else. Lazard Freres, how-
ever, had refused to commit Revlon to either request.

Rather, Revlon would redeem the Rights in connection with
any offer of $57.25 or more per share in cash, regardless cf
who made it. Further, Revlon would decline to waive the
covenants in the 11,75% Notes and $9 Preferred Stock unless
Lazard Freres {or other investment bankers) expressed an
opinion that the Notes would trade near par after any other
offer were made -- the same opinion that Lazard Freres and
Goldman Sachs are to give on the new Forstmann Little Notes.

47. Against this backdrop of events, Mr. Bergerac
addressed the Board members. He expressed concern that the

existing situation was impairing Revlon's business opera-

tions. Uncertainty about the future was taking its toll in
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the form of sharély reduced employee morale. Employees, not
surprisingly, were becoming more concerned about their own
futures, rather than the company’'s business operations.
Moreover, substantial energies were being diverted in the
takeover fight. Thus, Mr. Bergerac emphasized, there was a
pressing need to end the uncertainty. I and others at the
megting believed that, if the situation continued much
longer, the company might be destroyéd in the process.

48, Thus, the October 12 meeting brought to a head
the events that began unfolding nearly two months earlier.
Mr, Forstmann appeared again to state his firm's position.

He said that Mr. Perelman had told him Pantry Pride was ready
to outbid any Forstmann Little offer by $0.25. Mr. Forstmann
also stated that Mr. Perelman had tried to reach a Forstmann
Little - Pantry Pride agreement to divide Revlon. Mr.
Forstmann, however, informed us that this was not his objec-
tive in entering the fray. He also recounted that he had
apprecached Mr. Bergerac to ask that Mr. Bergerac and other
Revlon management personnel participate in the surviving
corporation., This, Mr. Forstmann explained, was his general
approach to transactions like this., He also described how,
the night before the meeting, Mr. Bergerac had called him to

explain the need to withdraw management participation,

Although Mr. Forstman told us he had never before made an
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acquisition without an assurance of continuity of management,
he was prepared to proceed here nonetheless,

49, Mr. Forstmann stated hig "bottom line® very
clearly. He had to have a lock~up option on Revlon's vision-
Care and National Health Laboratories Divisions in order to
avoid being used as‘stalking horse by Mr. Perelman with his
"$0.25 more" threat. He also had to have a Board decision
that night,. Otherwise, Forstmann Little would withdraw its
offer and leave Pantry Pride as the sole bidder -« with the
inevitable consequences. I firmly believed that Mr. Forstmann
was being sincere and candid in these statements,

50. Besides listening to Mr. Forstmann's presenta-
tion, the Board members struggled again with the available
options. Lazard Freres representatives, for example,
expressed the view that we might theoretically achieve $60-62
per share through ligquidation. However, it was questionable
whether this alternative was feasible because Pantry Pride
could effectively foreclose it by its own tender offer. In
any event, liquidation would present significantly greater
risks to the shareholders. We discussed Forstmann's insis-
tence on a lock up option, and its exchange proposal to deal
with the 11.75% Notes. The Board concluded that Feorstmann
Little's offer was better than Pantry Pride's for several
reasons. Forstmann Little was offering a higher price to the

stockholders. Unlike Pantry Pride, it also was prepared to
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protect the 11.75% Noteholders through its new exchange
offer. Furthermore, Forstmann Little's financing was in
place; Pantry Pride's was not.

51. After careful consideration of these and other
matters, the Board voted unanimously to accept Forstmann
Little's offer of $57.25 per share, coupled with its exchange
offer to protect our noteholders. At the same meeting, we
also acted to assure that the Rights would he redeemed, and
the covenants in the $9 Preferred Stock waived, in connection
with any offer -- by anyone =-- in which the stockholders
would receive $57.25 or more in cash. We further acted to
waive the covenants in the 11.75% Notes, so long as either
Lazard Freres or two.other established investment bankers
gave an opinion stating, in substance, that after an offer

were consummated, the Notes would trade at approximately par.

Conclusion
52. Neither the written nor, indeed, even the
spoken word can truly convey the experience that I and my
fellow Board members have shared these last two months.
Under intense pressures and stressful circumstances, we have
labored to protect Revlon's shareholders, as well as its
thousands of dedicated employees. With the assistance of

some of the leading experts in the field, and the selfless

leadership of Mr. Bergerac, I believe that we have succeeded,
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Perhaps some other processes, unknown and untested, could
have achieved a higher price for the shareholders, although
if they did not work the shareholders might have been stuck
with Pantry Pride's substantially lower offer. That,
however, is in the realm of speculation and hypothesis, which
directors operating in the real world cannot indulge in. I
can say with absolute conviction that the processes we
followed not only were in the best tradition of corporate
governance, but also created a competitive environment that
yielded for the shareholders a significant premium over the
price they were being pressured by Pantry Pride to take
before we succeeded in inducing Forstmann Little to bid. 1If
the agreement with Forstmann Little were enjoined, and Pantry
Pride left as the scle bidder -- the prospect we faced in

reaching our decision =-- the consequences for our share-

holders and noteholders could be disastrous.
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53.

Accordingly, I respectfully ask that the Court
deny plaintiff's preliminary injunction motion and allow a

transaction so beneficial to Revlon's shareholders to
proceed.

i

1// Simon H. Rifkindé/

Sworn to before me this bel

day of October 1985

(f”) 2 {. l/ —
MNotAry Public

JAY L
Notary paY L HIMES

e, Stats
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[Insert for Minutes of Revlon Board Meeting
Held on August 19, 1985
at the offices of WLR&K]

{Insert standard introductions, call of meeting to order, etc.]

Mr. Bergerac thanked the Directors for ﬁoming to-
gether promptly for the special meeting. Mr. Bergerac stated
that he knew the Board members were aware of the market rumors
and press reports during the past week concerning Pantry Pride
and Revlon. He also stated that he presumed the Board was
aware that approximately 4 million Revlon shares had traded
in the past week. He stated that he was advised by Pant?y
Pride's Chairman, Ronald Perelman, that Pantry Pride was pre-
pared to make a hostile tender offer for the Company at $45
per share, although he said that he had no indication from
Pantry Pri?e as to when or whether such a bid would be com-
menced. He further stated that, in his opinion and in manage-

‘ ment's opinion, after consulting with the Company's advisors,

the actions by Pantry Pride since June of this year, coupled

with the press reports and rumors and with the related volume

in Revlon stock, have created a situation in which Revlon

shareholders could be pressured into selling their shares at

prices that do not reflect what Revlon is really worth. Ac-
cordingly, Mr. Bergerac stated he had convened this meeting

so that the Board could take action to protect shareholders.
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Mr. Bergerac then called upon Mr. Rohatyn of Lazard
Freres & Co. to make a presentation concerning Pantry Pride
and the Company. Mr. Rohatyn stated that he believed that
the marketplace expected Pantry Pridé to make a bid for.Revlon
and that a substantial portion of the Company's stock had
moved into arbitrage hands. Mr. Rohatyn stated that Pantry
Pride itself was a much smaller company than Revlen that
it had emerged from bankruptcy proceedings a few years ago.
He stated that Pantry Pride was in the process of radically
restructuring itself, by selling off virtually all of its
old businesses and that it planned to make major acquisitions
of new businesses. He stated that Pantry Pride had recently
raised approximately $700 million through an underwritten
offering ¢f junk bonds by Drexel Burnham., Mr. Rohatyn stated
that he understood Pantry Pride would resort to more junk
bond financing to raise additional money to acquire Revlon.
Mr. Rohatyn stated that the Company had learned that Morgan
Stanley had been retained by Pantry Pride to solicit pﬁr-
chasers for Revlon's various businesses and that the proceeds.
of the sales of Revlon assets would be used to pay down the
acquisition debt. He also noted that Pantry Pride was being
advised by Skadden, Arps, Meagher, Slate & Flom. Mr. Rohatyn
noted that Pantry Pride, with its financing and its investment
advisors and legal advisors, was a formidable adversary capable

of accomplishing the objective it was seeking to achieve,

-
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namely, to buy Revlon as cheaply as possible, sell the various
pieces of Revlon's business to pPay back the financing and

retain the profit, or the remaining pieces, for itself.

Mr. Rohatyn noted that the pPrices that had been
mentioned in terms of a possible Pantry Pride offer were all
in the low to mid $40 range. He stated that Lazard Freres
had prepared an analysis of the Company and its values in
order to advise the Board in reviewing any possible proposals
by Pantry Pride. Mr. Rohatyn then introduced his partner,

Mr, William Loomis, to present the Lazard Freres analysis.

Mr. Loomis began by briefly describing the back-
ground of Pantry Pride. He stated that Pantry Pride had
emerged from a Chapter XI proceeding, had recently been taken
over by MacAndrews & Forbes, and was in the process of a radi-
cal reorganization of its business. He described Pantry Pride's
assetls, revenues and earnings, noting that it was a much smaller
company than Revlon and that it was highly leveraged. He
noted that Pantry Pride claimed to have available to it a tax
loss carry forward of approximately $330 million. He summar-
ized the terms of the $700 million offéring of junk bonds
completed by Pantry Pride in July 1985 which, it was understood,
would be used as part of the financing to acquire Revlon. He

noted for the Board of Directors that the prospectus relating
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to Pantry Pride's July offering indicated that Pantry Pride

would not by itself have sufficient éarnings to cover interest

charges. However, Mr. Loomis stated that the Pantry Pride

pProspectus claimed that, at the time, no acquisition candidates

had been identified.

Mr. Loomis then described the background of Mac-
Aqﬁrews & Forbes, which is 100% owned by Mr. Perelman. He
stated that not much has been publicly available about that
company since Mr. Perelman took it Private. He noted that
Pantry Pride had been the subject of a Proxy contest in 1985
and that MacAndrews & Forbes'_acquisition of a controlling
interest in Pantry Pride was a result of that proxy contest.
Mr. Loomis stated that MacAndrews & Forbes controlled approxi-
mately 37) of the voting power of Pantry Pride. He noted
that Mr. Perelman was the Chairman of Pantry Pride and that
MacAndrews & Forbes representatives constituted a majority

of Pantry Pride's board of directors.

Mr. Loomis then turned to Lazard Freres' valuation
analysis of Revlon. He stated that, although there were
rumors earlier in the week of a possible bid in the mid $50's,
all of the current rumors in the marketplace regarding a
Pantry Pride offer for Revlen indicated price levels of $45
or less. Mr. Loomis stated that Lazard Freres had a long-term

relationship with Revlon and had been working with Revlon for

-4=
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a long time on programs to maximize shareholder values. Con-
sequently, Mr. Loomis stated that Lazard Freres was Very fami-
liar with Revlon's businesses, financial plans and operations.
Mr. Loomis stated that in the last week Lazard Freres had

reviewed and updated its work with respect to Revlon and that

his presentation reflected the latest management estimates.

Mr. Loomis stated that Lazard Freres' analysis ap-
proached Revlon both as a whole and also as the sum of its
component parts. In each case, he stated, Lazard Freres ana-
lyzed Revlen from all financial perspectives = income statement,
palance sheet, financial ratios, comparable transactions,
market prices, etc. He stated that the Lazard Freres analysis
was contained in a binder that it had prepared and that he
would summarize. Mr. Loomis stated that the binder was with
him in the Board room available for inspection by the Directors.
Mr. Lbomis stated that the analysis shows that a price level
of $45 would be grossly inadequate for Revlon viewing the
business as a whole. He also noted that viewing Revlon's
businesses separately, a $45 sales price becomes even more
inadequate because greater value could be created by selling
the businesses separately. He noted, however, that this anal-
ysis did not imply that this was the best time to sell Revlon
or any of its component businesses. He stated that this was
the wrong time to sell the cosmetics business in particular

in light of the current trends in that industry. He also
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noted that the health care businesses were premium businesses

at the present time and appeared to be on a growth track.

Responding to. a question from Mr. Zilkha, Mr. Loomis
stated that if Revlon's businesses were sold separately, and
proper time were allowed, it should be possible to realize
between $60 and $70 a share, recognizing again that this should
not imply that this was the best time to sell Revlon's business.
Again responding to a question, Mr. Loomis stated that the
sale of Revlon's component parts could be accomplished in

three to four months' time.

Mr. Loomis continued by stating that the asset val-
ues he described highlight Pantry Pride's strategy. Pantry
Pride's objective is to use Revlon's assets to cbtain financ-
ing to buy Revlon cheaply. Assuming Pantry Pride were to
obtain control of Revlen, interest on the Pantry Pride debt
should not be a major problem for Pantry Pride, Mr. Loomis.
stated, because Morgan Stanley will have presold several of

Revlon's key assets.

Mr. Rohatyn pointed out that Pantry Pride's strat-
egy was contingent upon acgquiring all of Revlon. Only by
owning all of Revlon could Pantry Pride have direct access
to Revlen's assets in order to repay its financing. Mr.
Rohatyn stated that, since Pantry Pride had no substance of

its own, it was dependent on Revlon's assets to service its
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debt, Responding to a question from a Boéfd member, Mr.

Loomis stated although there was no offer on the table, it

was clearly Lazard Freres' viey that any price even close

to $45 per share would be grossly inadequate from a financial
point of view. He stated that in Lazard Freres' analysis the
various Revlon businesses could be sold Separately, but on

a timely basis, Yielding values of between $60 and $70 per
share, but that if the Company did not wish to undertake the
expense and risk inherent with the separate sales of its busi-
nesses, it could nevertheless exXpect to realize Prices in the

mid $50 range for the Company as a whole.

At Mr. Lipton's Suggestion, Mr. Bergerac summarized
for the Board the contacts between Pantry Pride and Revlon.
Mr. Bergerac stated that in mid-June, 1985 he had met briefly
with Mr. Perelman at his apartment at Mr. Perelman's request.
The meeting had beep arranged through Joseph Flom, a Skadden
Arps partner, and Judge Rifkind. At the meeting Mr. Perelman
said that Pantry Pride was interested in negotiating a friendly
acquisition of the Company at a per share price in the low
$40's if it were able to raise financing through a junk bond
offering it was then contemplating. Mr., Bergerac stated that
he advised Mr, Perelman at that time that Mr. Perelman's
Price range was far below the Company's value and that conse-

quently he had no interest in Such a transaction. Mr. Bergerac
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reminded the Board that he had previously advised the Directors
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of his meeting with Mr. Perelman. Subsegquently Mr. Perelman
tried to reach Mr. Bergerac on several other occasions during

" the summer but Mr. Bergerac declined to meet on the basis

U R S

that there was no interest in a transaction of the sort contem-
plated by Pantry Pride. It was during this period that there

were market rumors and newspaper reports that Mr. Perelman

S SRS L

had been saying that MacAndrews & Forbes would acquire Revlon.

Mr. Bergerac stated that on August 12, 1985, and

on August 14, 1985, Mr. Perelman requested an urgent meeting
with Mr. Bergerac. Mr. Bergerac stated that he was not avail-

able on August 12 but did agree to a meeting on August 14.

On August 14 a meeting was held at Arthur Liman's office at
which Mr. Perelman stated that Pantry Pride's directors

had authorized an offer to acguire Revlon on either a nego-
tiated or hostile bésis. Mr. Perelman stated that although
he would like to negotiate an acquisition at $42 or $43 per

share, he was authorized and prepared to make a hostile tender

e A1 VATl SEECANER R A AN AFREIOS, | (S S

cffer at $45 per share. Mr. Bergerac stated that he told

Mr. Perelman at the time that the prices discussed by Mr.

Perelman were "ridiculous" and that in any case he was not
prepared to have discussions with Mr. Perelman under the
threat of a hostile offer. He stated that he would agree to
discussions if Mr. Perelman would sign a customary confiden-

tiality agreement which included provisions for a standstill

-
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as a predicate for the disclosure of confidential information

concerning the Company.

mmy v neng

Mr. Bergerac stated that after the Wednesday meet-
ing, management decided to retain Wachtell Lipton to advise

the Company in this matter and that there was a need to de-

L 85005

velop a strategy to deal with Pantry Pride. As a result of
discussions between Wachtell Lipton and Skadden Arps, Mr.

i Bergerac met with Mr. Perelman at the Wachtell Lipton offices
{ for lunch on August 16. At that lunch Mr. Bergerac reaffirmed
% that he would not enter into negotiations with Mr. Perelman

|
{ unless Mr. Perelman withdrew his threat of a hostile offer.
]

Mr. Bergerac stated that it appeared to him that

Mr. Perelman was under tremendous pressure to act quickly

with respect to Revlon. He stated that all of the press re-

e e, e

ports with respect to Revlon and Pantry Pride had been gen-
erated from the Pantry Pride side because Revlon had respond-

ed "no comment" to all pPress inquiries. Mr. Bergerac stated

T e —

that it seemed to him that the objectives of Pantry Pride's

Press campaign were (1) to give Pantry Pride_stature in the

marketplace by virtue of the fact that it could seriously

contemplate such a bid, (2) to create an impression that there

could be a friendly transaction, (3) to create the impression

gﬂ
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; that Revlon is for sale and (4) to drive shares into the hands

of arbitrageurs.

Mr. Liman then reported on developments with Pantry
Pride that morning. He stated that he had met with Mr. Engel,
a managing director of Drexel Burnham, who had stated that
Pantry Pride's objective would be a friendly transaction for
two divisions of Revlon. Mr. Liman responded to Mr. Engel
that Revlon would enter into discussions but only if Pantry
Pride removed the threat of a hostile offer. He stated that
Revlon could not put itself in the position of sharing in-.
; formation to support its price claims while at the same time
being under the threat of a hostile takeover bid. Mr. Liman
said that later that morning Mr. Perelman met with Judge
Rifkind and himself and indicated that he might sign a stand-
? still arrangement if there were a "sign of good faith" from
3 Revlen. Mr. Liman said that Mr. Perelman wanted the Company
to indicate a price range for two of its divisions and that
if that price range evidenced "good faith" he would consider
\ signing a confidentiality agreement. Mr. Liman stated that
% Mr. Perelman specifically reserved his options to accept the

price range and still not remove the threat of a hostile

2 takeover bid. Mr. Liman reported that after meeting with
Mr. Bergerac, Mr. Lipton and Mr. Rohatyn and reporting Mr.

Perelman's proposal, he called back Mr. Perelman and stated
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that the Company would not agree %o Put a price tag upon it
self without assurance that negotiations and not an unsolie
cited takeover bid would ensue. Mr. Liman asked Mr. Perelman
what his price range was for the two divisions and received
in return a formula which was calculated by Lazard Freres to
produce a value between $300 million - $400 million. Mr.
Liman stated that Lazard Freres had valued those businesses
at approximately $1 billion. Mr. Liman reported that Mr.
Perelman was interested in the analysis that supported Lazard
Freres' valuations,.but that he was not prepared to enter
into a standard confidentiality agreement in order to get

access to the information.

Mr. Lipton then stated that he would review the
presentations of Lazard Freres and management and summarize
the recdmmendation that management was bringing to the Board
of Directors. Mr, Lipton stated that Revlon has been a target
of a takeovef attack since July and that the marketplace has
witnessed an effort to "move" shares into the hands of arbitra-
geurs and to create a feeling among institutions that there
could be a premium transaction to acquire the Company. Mr.
Lipteon stated that this type.of activity is typical of an
attempt to orchestrate a junk bond financed takeover of a
target company. He stated that by means of this technique

someone without the financial wherewithal to acquire a target

-11-
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can become a credible threat to make an acquisition attempt.
Moving stock into arbitrage hands applies pressure to the
board of directors to accept a premium but does not necessarily

result in the maximization of shareholder value.

Mr. Lipton stated that the presentation by Lazard
Freres and by management indicated that maximum value of the
Company would not be obtained in the sale to one party provided
that the Company had the three to four months necessary te get
the best available prices for the Company's various businesses.
He noted, however, that neither Lazard Fretes nor management
believed that this is the right time to sell the Company or
its component businesses. Nevertheless, Mr. Lipton stated
that the market activity that has been generated in the past
week by the leaks and rumours and moving shares into the hands
of arbitrageurs has created a situation where the likelihood
of achieving maximum shareholder value has been decreased
because the investor community would be looking for a quick,

short-term profit rather than the maximum long-term value.

Mr. Lipton stated that he agreed with Mr. Rohatyn
that Pantry Pride posed a very real threat to the Company
notwithstanding its small size and highly leveraged position.
Mr. Lipton stated that it must be assumed‘that, if left alone,

Drexel Burnham could raise the financing necessary for the
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Disc #707
Draft - Subject to Review

[Insert for Minutes of Revlon Board Meeting
Held on August 26, 1985
at the offices of WLR&K ]

[Insert standard introductions, call to order, etc. |

Mr. Bergerac thanked the Directors for coming together
promptly once again for this special meeting. Mr. Bergerac
recounted for the Directors the develobments since the Board
meeting last week, principally that the Pantry Pride tender
offer was announced the previous Monday, that the Company
had commenced litigation against Pantry Pride, and that litiga-
tion had been commenced against the Company and the Directors
challenging the actions that the Board had taken last week. Mr.
Bergerac noted that the Company had tried to contact Chemical
Bank, both directly and through its advisors, to try to persuade
Chemical not to be the lynch-pin in a bust-up takecver of one of
its clients. Mr. Bergerac then asked Mr. Rohatyn to comment on

the Pantry Pride offer.

Mr. Rohatyn stated that in Lazard Freres' cpinion,
the price of $47.50 being offered by Pantry Pride was grossly
inadeguate from a financial point of view. He stated that
the basis of Lazard Freres' opinion was the valuation analysis

presented at the meeting last Monday.
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Mr. Rohatyn then stated that Pantry Pride's offer
to purchase indicated valuations which supported Lazard Freres'
opinion. Specifically, he noted that Pantry Pride's offer to
purchase stated that Pantry Pride Planned to sell all of the
Company's assets other than its beauty care business for be-
tween $1.6 billion and $1.95 billion - or between $43.73 and
$49.60 per presently outstanding Revlion share. He noted that
the outstanding identifiable assets of the Beauty Group were
in excess of $8C0 million and that that group had sales and
operating income of $1.1 billion and $100 million, respectively,
for the prior year. Mr. Rohatyn stated that Lazard Freres
does not quarrel with the valuation estimates stated by Pantry
Pride in its offer to purchase. He stated that it was not
difficult by making reasonable assumptions as to the value of
the Beauty Group and with regard to debt reduction to reach a
total value in the mid $60's, starting with Pantry Pride's

numbers.

Mr. Rohatyn then described the financing required
by Pantry Pride to make its offer, principally the $900 million
offer of several series of junk bonds and the Chemical Bank
commitment which he described as being subject to numerous
difficult conditions. Mr. Rohatyn noted the view of the Com-
Pany's lawyers that the finaneing structure proposed by Pantry
Pride would be violative of the margin regulations in that

the entire financing appeared to be secured by Revlon stock
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which was the only asset sufficient to support such huge

borrowings.

The Chairman stated that the Company's management
agreed with Lazard Freres' opinion as to the inadequacy of the
Pantry Pride offer. The Chairman then asked Mr. Lipton to make

a presentation.

Mr. Lipton introduced his partner, Mr. Brownstein,
who, he indicated, would provide background for the Board on
the Pantry Pride offer and the management recommendation. Mr.
Brownstein began by outlining the relevant dates and timing
of the Pantry Pride offer. Although Mr. Brownstein noted
that it was unlikely that Pantry Pride would be able to pur-
chase shares in accordance with the timetable in its offer
because of the substantial conditions to its cbligations there-
under, Mr. Brownstein stated that management was recommend-
ing action at this time so that the Company's response would
be timely assuming Pantry Pride were to be able to meet its

scheduled timetable.

Mr. Brownstein noted that the Pantry Pride offer was
subject to several substantial conditions, which he reviewed,
noting particularly conditions relating to eliminating the
Note Purchase Rights, to financing, and to the absence of any
changes in the Company's capital structure or in its Retire-

ment Savings Plan. Mr. Brownstein then reviewed the detailed
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conditions contained in the commitment letter between Pantry
Pride and Chemical Bank as described in the Pantry Pride offer

to purchase.

Mr. Brownstein stated thét management, after con-
sulting with the Company's advisors, was recommending that the
Board not redeem the Note Purchase Rights at this time. Mr.
Brownstein noted that the Board adopted the Rights Plan last
week to provide shareholders with protection against low-priced
offers. Thus, Mr. Brownstein stated that it would not be ap-
propriate to redeem the Rights to facilitate an offer that
Lazard Freres had opined, and that management believed, was

grossly inadequate.

Mr. Brownstein stated that the management was recom-
mending two additional responses to the Pantry Pride offer.
The first was to continue the litigation against Pantry Pride
that had been commenced earlier in Delaware Federal court.

Mr. Brownstein stated that it was proposed to amend the Com-
pany's complaint in that action to include allegations based
upon Pantry Pride's tender offer materials and also to include
charges against Chemical Bank, Pantry Pride's lending bank,
;laiming violations of the margin rules and claiming that

Chemical was a co-bidder with Pantry Pride.

Mr. Brownstein stated that the second additional

response to the Pantry Pride offer that was being recommended
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to the Board consisted of a tender offer by the Company to
purchase up to 10 million shares of its common stock by ex-

changing for each share securities that would have a face

value of $57.50 per share. Mr. Brownstein stated that these
securities consisted of $47.50 principal amount of Senior
Subordinated Notes due in 1995 which would have a coupon rate

of 11.75% and 1/10th of a share of a Cumulative Convertible

|
|
!
|

Preferred Stock with an annual dividend rate of $9.00 per
share. Mr. Brownstein stated that the pPrecise economic terms
of these securities would be described later by Mr. Smith of

Laéard Freres and that Lazard Freres had worked with the Com=

pany's management to design the terms of these securities so

i, o b i

that they would each trade at their face value on a fully

distributed basis.

Mr. Brownstein pointed out that the terms of the

securities that were being offered in the exchange cffer con-

N e T

j ) tained certain provisions that were designed to deter or make
more difficult an unsolicited takeover attempt, including the

} Pantry Pride takeover attempt. He noted that provisions of

| the Notes would preclude incurrence of additional indebtedness,
most asset sales and most restricted payments, such as divie

; dends, unless these transactions were approved by the Independent

% Directors. Mr. Brownstein stated that the term "Independent

Directors" as used in these securities meant the independent
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directors on the Board of Directors today and successors nomi=
nated for election by them or by successor Independent Direc-
tors. Mr. Brownstein stated that the Preferred Stock contained
provisions that would impose restraints on debt incurrence by
the Company that was not approved by the Independent Directors.
Mr. Brownstein noted that in the event of default during the
non-call period of the Notes, a premium would be payable egqual
to the coupon on the Notes in addition to the Notes being

accelerated.

Mr. Brownstein noted that the Notes were designed
to be senior to acquisition debt that may be imposed on the
Company through a merger with Pantry Pride or some other party
but were not désigned to interfere with the Company's outstand-
ing bank financing. He stated that he understood that some
waivers would be necessary from the Company's bank lenders in
order to consummate the exchange offer, but that management
expected that these waivers would be forthcoming without prob-

lems.

Mr. Brownstein noted that since the exchange
offer would significantly change the capitalization of the
Company it would likely have an adverse effect on the trading
prices of the remaining shares. Therefore, it would be in
the shareholders' advantage to tender to receive the premium

for a portion of their shares in the offer and that it was
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anticipated- -that the Board would recommend that all share-
holders tender all of their shares into the exchange offer.
Mr. Brownstein noted that the offer was subject to proration
under the SEC self-tender rules and that therefore all share-
holders would have the opportunity to participate and be

treated equally.

Mr. Brownstein noted that, based on the advice of
Lazard Freres, management was recommending that the Bcard
authorize in connectioﬁ with the exchange offer the sale of
assets to realize proceeds of $250 million and a program
of expense reducfions. The purpose of these actions,

Mr. Brownstein stated, was to increase equity and reduce debt.

Mr. Smith of Lazard Freres then reviewed for the
Board the financial terms of the securities being offered
in the exchange offer -- their interest rates and dividend
rates, conversion and exchange provisions, sinking fund provi-
sions and redemption features. Mr. Smith stated that while
it could bhe expected that the ratings of the Company's debt
securities would be lowered as a result of the exchange offer,
it was his view that the Company's debt securities, including
those being offered, would retain investment grade ratings.
Mr. Smith noted that consummation of the exchange offer would
likely impede the Company's ability to continue financing

with commercial paper. He stated that the Company would be
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able to replace such financing from other sources, including

bank lines of credit, that were available to it.

Mr. Loomis of Lazard Freres stated that the exchange
offer was structured so as to maintain the Company's flexi-
bility and that in management's and Lazard Freres' opinion the
Company would not go into a liquidation mode as a result of con-
summation of the offer but would continue as a strong operatiné
company with bright future prospeéts. In that regard, he noted
that the proposed asset sale and eéxpense reductions were an
integral part of the Plan being presented in that they were

designed to increase equity, reduce debt and increase earnings.

Mr. Loomis then reviewed with the Directors the
opinion of Lazard Freres, a draft of which was given to every
Director at the meeting. Mr. Loomis stated that this opinien
would be signed and dated as of the date the exchange offer
éommenced. He stated that Lazard Freres was of the opinion
that the Pantry Pride offer was grossly inadegquate from a
financial point of view. He also stated that, in Lazard Freres'
opinion, the securities to be offered by the Company in the
exchange offer, if trading today on a fully distributed basis,_
would each trade at face value., He stated that Lazard Freres
was of the opinion that the exchénge offer was fair to the
Company's shareholders from a financial peint of view, noting
that in rendering such opinion Lazard Freres took note of the

fact that the exchange offer is being made available to all
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holders of common stock on an equal basis and that therefore

there is no issue as to the adequacy of the value of the ,
securities being offered for exchange since all shareholders l
have the opportunity to participate equally. Next, Mr. Loomis

stated that, in Lazard Freres' opinion, after the offer the

Company would continue to be a viable enterprise and have the

financial flexibility and resources necessary to operate its

business. Finally, Mr. Loomis offered Lazard Freres' opinion

that the exchange offer is a more attractive financial oppor-

tunity for the shareholders of the Company than the Pantry

Pride offer because the exchange offer provides the share- L
holders the opportunity to realize premium values for a sub-

stantial portion of their shares and to retain a continuing

equity interest in the Company. Mr. Loomis noted that this

last point should be stressed because, in Lazard Freres'

opinion, the opportunity to retain equity in Revlon was of

particular importance in light of their views as to the pros-

pects of Revlon and that this was not the appropriate time to

sell the Company.

In respeonse to a question from Mr. Z2ilkha, Mr.
Loomis stated that Lazard Freres expected that the blended
value of the Company's exchange offer and the market price of
the remaining shares would be about the same as, or in excess

of, the Pantry Pride offer, although he noted that blended
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value would depend on the precise proration factor in the
exchange offer. He noted that therefore the exchange offer
could make an acquisition by Pantry Pride more expensive
unless the value of the remaining common stock were to fall

significantly below anticipated levels.

Mr. Rohatyn commented, in response to Mr. Zilkha's
question, that Lazard Freres was not recomme?ding the exchange
cffer on the basis of short-term blended values. He stated
that the Lazard Freres' recommendation was based upon the two
part benefit offered by the exchange offer, namely, the oppor-
tunity for shareholders to obtain a significant premium now
for a substantial percentage of their shares and to retain a

continuing equity interest in Revlon.

Mr. Lipton commented that even if there were a
drop in the price of the remaining shares to the extent that
there would be no net additional cost effect on the Pantry
Pride offer, the exchange offer would mandate restructuring
of the financing for the Pantry Pride offer because of the

covenants contained in the securities that would be issued.

In response to a gquestion from Judge Rifkind, Mr.
Lipton stated that the mere announcement of the exchange offer
would trigger a condition in the Pantry Pride offer and in

the commitment of Chemical Bank to finance such offer.

-10-
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At the request of the Chairman, Mr. Lipton summarized
the impact of the management recommendations. Mr. Lipton
stated that last week in response to a threatened $45 hostile
proposal, the Board of Directors, upon management's recommenda-
tion and the advice of the Company's financial and legal ad-
visors, authorized the declaration of the Note Purchase Rights
dividend. He stated that since last week, Pantry Pride has,
in fact, commenced its tender offer but that that offer is
subject to numerous conditions, the two principal ones being
that the Note Purchase Rights be redeemed or otherwise elimin-
ated and that Pantry Pride obtain financing to purchase the
shares. Mr.’Lipton stated that Lazard Freres had opined that

the Pantry Pride offer was grossly inadeguate from a financial

point of view.

Mr. Lipton stated that management, together with
Lazard Freres and the Company's legal advisors, had develcped
a plan which attacks both of the key conditions of the Pantry
Pride offer. The Plan provides, first, that the Board not
redeem the Rights at the present time and, second, that the
Board authorize tﬁe exchange offer described at the'meeting.
Mr. Lipton stated that management has recommended that the
Rights not be redeemed to facilitate an offer that the Com-
pany's advisors have opined to be grossly inadequate espe~

cially since the Rights were declared the previous week to

-1l-
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protect shareholders against such offers. Mr. Lipton next ‘
pointed out that the proposed eXchange offer was designed to
stop the Pantry Pride offer. Mr. Lipton noted that in three
recent cases, involving Unocal, Phillips and CBS, courts had
denied injunctive relief against actions similar to those
being proposed by management. Mr. Lipton stated that in his
opinion the actions being recommended to the Board were appro-
priate responses to an offer determined to be grossly inade-
guate. He stateg that the basis for the Board's action would
be Lazard Freres' opinions that the Qantry Pride offer was
grbssly inadequate, that the exchange offer would not have an
adverse effect on the viability of the Company as a continuing
enterprise and that the exchange offer is a preferable financial
alternative to the Pantry Pride offer. In regard to the last
peint, Mr. Lipton noted that if the Board were to do nothing,
in all likelihood Pantry Pride would acquire the shares at
$47.50, particularly in light of the large arbitrage holdings

of the stock.

Mr. Lipton reminded the Board of the principles
underlying the business judgment rule that he articulated at
last week's meeting, namely, that the Directors' sole obliga-
tion was to exercise their business judgment on a reasonable
basis, in good faith and in what they believed is the best

interest of shareholders. He stated that a decision by the

-12-
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Board of Directors to authorize the exchange offer if made

in good faith and upon an adequate basis would be a valid
exercise of business judgment by the Board of Directors and
would not be second-guessed by the courts. Mr. Lipton stated
that, in his opinion, the Directors had before them adequate
information to form a basis to exercise‘their business judgment
and to make a decision to approve the offer. However, if the
Di:ectors desired more information, management and the Company's
advisors were there to answer their questions. Mr. Lipton
noted that current drafts of all the legal documentation neces-
sary to effect the exchange offer were present and that such
documentation had been prepared by his firm together with the
Company and its accountants and had been reviewed by the
Company's inside counsel and regﬁlar outside counsel and by

Lazard Freres and its counsel,.

There ensued a discussion in which the Directors
asked numerous questions of Mr. Bergerac and the Company's
advisors with respect to the exchange offe;, the Pantry Pride

offer and the Company's response.

Thereafter, at the request of the Chairman, Mr.
Brownstein reviewed each of the resolutions that was proposed
te be acted upon by the Board, cecpies of which had been pre-

sented to the Board members at the meeting. Mr. Brownstein

“13-
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noted certain minor changes in the resolutions, as presented,

; and responded to questions concerning the resolutions.

After the rescluticns were reviewed by Mr. Brown-

stein, the Chairman called for a vote of the Directecrs in-

dividually, in which the resolutions were unanimously adopted.

-14-
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REVLON, INC.
Minutes of Reqular Meeting of Board of Directors

September 24, 1985

A Reqular Meeting of the Board of Directors of REVLON, INC., a
Delaware corporation, was held at the offices of the Company, 767
Fifth Avenue, New York, New York, on Tuesday, September 24, 1983, at
11:00 A.M.

The following directors were present:

Simon Aldewereld John Louden

Sander P. Alexander Aileen Mehle

Jay I. Bennett Simon H, Rifkind
Michel C. Bergerac Samuel L. Simmons
Irving J. Bottner Ian R, Wilson
Jacob Burns Paul P. Weolard
Lewis L. Glucksman Bzra K. Zilkha

constituting the entire Board of Direqtors. Mr. Michael Sayres,
Senior Vice President of the Company, Mr. Felix G. Rohatyn, Mr.
William R, Loomis, Jr. and Mr. Jesse Robert Lovejoy of Lazard Freres
& Co., the Company's financial advisors, Mr. Arthur L. Liman, Mr.
Arthur Kalish and Ms. Judith R. Thoyer of Paul, Weiss, Rifkind,
Wharton & Garrison, the Company's regular outside counsel, and Mr,
Martin Lipton and Mr. Andrew R. Brownstein of Wachtel, Lipton, Rosen
& Ratz, the Company's special outside counsel, were present by
invitation of the Board of Directors.

In accordance with the By~laws, Mr., Bergerac, Chairman of the
Board and Chief Executiﬁe Officer of the Company, presided at the
meeting, and Mr. Wade H. Nichols III, Vice President and Secretary

of the Company, acted as the Secretary thereof.
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Upon motion duly made and seconded and unanimously carried, the
reading of the minutes of the Special Meetings of the Board of
pirectors held on August 19 and August 26, 1985, was deferred.

The Chairman advised that the fi:st item of formal business
pefore the meeting was consideration of declaring the regular
quartefly Series A Preferred Stock dividend in the amount of $.4875
per share, to be payable on November 13, 1985, to stockholders of
record on October 25, 1985, and referred to the memoranda of the
Treasurer's gnd Controller's Departments previously distributed to
the directors, which were ordered to be annexed to the minutes as
Exhibits A and B, respectively. After full discussion, upon motion
duly made and seconded and unanimously carried, it was: X

RESOLVED, that a gquarterly dividend in the

amount of $.4875 per share on the Series A Adjustable

Rate Convertible Preferred Stock of the Company be,

and the same hereby is, declared payable on November

15, 1985 to stockholders of record on October 23, 1985,

The Chairman advised tﬁat the next two Agenda items related to
the Revlon Employees' Savings and Investment Plan's participation in
the Company's Exchange Offer commenced on August 29, and called upon
Mr. Simmons, Senior Vice President and Gener;l Counsel to the
Company, to summarize the proposals., Mr. Simmons noted that the
Investment Committee of the Savings and Investment Plan, with the
advice of ocutside counsel to the Committee, had determined that the
Company Offer was a sufficiently extraordinary event that Plan
Participants should be afforded an opportunity o indicate whether

they wished shares of the Company's Common Stock held by the Plan

for their accounts to be tendered to the Company, tendered in

Tesponse to the offer commenced by Pantry Pride on August 23, or not
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tendered, with the Committee reserving discretion as le]
non-instructed shares and as to all shares if a material change in
circumstances were to occur. As a result of this program, Mr.
gimmons reported, approximately 1,175,000 shares were cendered DY
the Plan in the Company Offer. Mr. gimmons advised that the Plan
amendments being proposed in Agenda Item 2 were required to permit
the Plan to sell the Notes and Preferred Stock receivable in the
company Offer and to reinvest the proceeds in the Company's Common
Stock, should the Plan determine to do so, and the Registration
Statement proposed to be authorized under Agenda Item 3 was required
to register under the Securities Act of 1933 any Notes and Preferred
Stock that might be sold by the Plan or by purchasers from the Plan,
if the Committee determined to effect any such sales by private
placement. After full discussion, upon motion duly made and
seconded and unanimously carried, it was:

RESOLVED, that the Revlon Employees' Savings and
Investment Plan, as amended, be, and it hereby is,
further amended, effective September 1, 1985, in the
manner set forth in Exhibit C hereto, with such
changes therein not materially inconsistent therewith
as the officers of the Company, oOr &ny of them, with
advice of counsel to the Company, may determine to be
necessary or advisable to give effect to the purposes
thereof, such determination to be evidenced
conclusively by the execution of such amendment in
definitive form;

RESOLVED, that the officers of the Company be,
and they hereby are, authorized and empowered, 1in
conjunction with the Company's counsel and auditors,
to prepare, execute and file with the gecurities and
Exchange Commission, in the name and on behalf of the
Company, & Registration gtatement on Form $=3 1in
connection with the registration under the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended, of the Company's 11.75%
senior Subordinated Notes Due 1995 and  $9.00
cumulative Convertible Exchangeable preferred Stock -
(collectively, the "Securities"), for offering by the
Revlon Employees' Savings and Investment Plan or by

persons to whom such Plan may sell Securities; and
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RESOLVED, that the officers of the Company be,

and they hereby are, authorized and empowered EO

prepare, execute and file such amendments to said

Registration Statement on Form S-3 or post-effective

amendments theretoe and such other instruments and

documents in connection therewith, and to take such

other actions, as they shall, with the advice of such

counsel and auditors, deem necessary or appropriate.

The Chairman then referred to the announcement by Pantry Pride
on Septembér 13 that it had terminated its August 23 offer and was
commencing a new offer for all of the Company's Common Stock at a
lower price of $42 per share, and called upon Mr. Loomis to describe
the new offer.

Mr. Loomis advised that the new offer was commenced on September
16, and that under its terms, shares tendered could not be withdrawn
after October 4, at which time Pantry Pride could commence
purchasing., He noted that the offer would expire on October 11,
unless extended. He pointed out that, according to its Offer to
Purchase, Pantry Pride had available $750 million, principally from
its previous offer of $700 million of junk bonds, and intended to
place privately approximately $500 million of additional junk bonds,
for which it had not received commitments, and to obtain the balance
of the funds required through a bank commitment of $340 millioenm,
which was subject to numerous conditions that appeared unlikely to
be fulfilled, as in the case of its initial offer. among the
conditions to the offer, Mr. Loomis noted, was that at least 90% of
the Company's outstanding shares be tendered, and among the

conditions to the bank's commitment was that 88% of the fully-

diluted shares be tendered, which the Offer to Purchase disclosed
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n might not be achieved even if the 90% condition was

conditio
new offer, pantry Pride

fulfilled. Mr. Loomis noted that, in its

nad simply adjusted its original $47.50 price to take account of the

company's purchase of 10 million shares and &0 reflect the premium

would likely be required to acquire the preferred stock issued

ghat
so that essentially the offer price was

in the Company pffer,

unchanqed and, in rLazard Freres' opinion, remained grossly

m a financial point ©of view., MI. Loomis summarized

opinion, 2Ss had been explained toO the

jnadequate fro

the basis for Lazard Freres'

poard at the August 26, 19853 meeting, referring to the analysis

contained in the "black book" prepared by rLazard, copies of which

were made available to the Directors.

Mr. Loomis advised that 2 review of pantry pride's financing

made it clear that, unlike many render offers, no provision nhad been

made to refinance the Company's debt to banks or public security-

holders, SO that Pantry pride's offer put substantial pressure on

r in order not to be faced with acceleration of

shareholders to tende
insolvency. He noted, in the same

pantry Pride disclosed that

this debt and possible

connection, that as in the first offer,

ig it were anable to complete a second-step Mmerger within

approximately nine months oI less, there could be no assurance thdt

r any shares not tendered in the first

it would be able to pay fo

step. ~ But unlike the first offer, he advised, Pantry pride no

longer stated rhat the same cash price would be offered in an¥

so that the new offer-should be yiewed as Mmore

second-step merger,

coercive and inadequate than the first.
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' ML . Loomis reminded the directors that they again had before

‘them razarcd freres' study of the Company's financial positicn and
Prog,pects, valuing the Company as a whole and also in terms of its

'qarious lines of business in relatien to other companies in the same
inaustries, and that the directors Wwere invited to raise any

hey might have concerning tazard Freres' valuation, 1its

'questi'ons £
price offered by Pantry Pr

jde was grossly

! determination that the

' ipadequate, y his presentation.

or any other matters covered b

’ In response to a question as to why remaining shareholders

ghould fear insolvency following 2 successful Pantry pride offer, in

values in relation to Pantry pride's low

‘ yiew of the Company's high
i offer price, Mr. Loomis pointed out that insolvency would be a
perceived risk because of the effects of exercises of Note Purchase

Rights, the )3
)
. and the fact that Pantry pride’'s junk bond indebtedness would be

. added to the Company's debt in any second-step merger.

ikely acceleration of institutional and public d&ebt,

Responding

I
{ to an observation that institutional lenders and public debt
:

trustees mighE pe willing toO accept 2 stand-still to avoid

Mr. Loomis agreed that there would be substantial

put noted that stockholders would have 1o

pressure on them to do s0,

stand-stills could be arranged. Mr. Loomis

assurance that such

noted further that reaching such agreements would be time-consuming
and might £force pantry Pride to sell Company assets on a Rore

accelerated and less profitable pasis than it wished. MrC. Loomis
noted also that, although Pantry pride might reach a standstill with
the interests of

creditors, 1t was very uncertain as to how
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stockholders would be protected in such a situation. Mr. Loomis
reiterated that, for all these reasons, the Pantry Pride offer
would, and was intended to, maximize pressure on stockholders O
tender because of the risk that the Company might be forced into
insolvency, notwithstanding that creditors might in fact agree to
keep the Company out of bankruptcy thle Pantry Pride pursued its
ligquidation program.

Mr. Lipton noted that much of the discussion thus far had been
premised on Pantry Pride effecting a merger that would add its debt
to the Company's, He explained, however, that until this oeccurred,
pantry Pride could not shift its debt to the Company, and that in
the absence of a commitment from Drexel Burnham or others to supply
further financing, there was a serious risk to Pantry Pride that it
would be unable to carry its debt burden until it. could force a
change in a majority of the Company's Board. Ee noted that there
also would be a. difficult legal problem for the Company's Beard
following the Pantry Pride offer, even if it were then comprised of
a majority of Pantry Pride nominees, because it would then be in the
position of having to determine whether to approve a merger that
would unquestionablg have the effect of breaching the Company's debt
covenants and accelerating its debt. Accordingly, he noted, even
such a Board might feel compelled to defer a merger until
stand-still commitments could be worked out covering institutional
and public debt, which could require a substantial amount of time,

particularly where creditors are diverse in terms of seniority, as
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would be the case following Pantry pride's proposed merger. For

gnese reasons, Mr. Lipton noted, while there could be no assurance

ghat pantry Pride would not g9 forward, it clearly would face

gerious obstacles.

Mr. Rohatyn peinted out that, assuming 2 scenario in which

pantrf pride received only 70% to 75% of the Company's shares, 2

gubstantial delay in acquiring control of the Board and resultant

gelay in selling Company assets or servicing Pantry Pride debt

through a merger could make the price simply too high for Pantry

pride, even assuming the availability of additional Drexel Burnham
bridge financing.

In response to a question as to how long Pantry Pride might

pelieve it would need to defeat the Note purchase Rights in court,

even assuming they gltimately were found to be invalid, Mr. Liman

advised that Pantry pride likely would conclude that at least sixX

months would be required for 3 final judgment, assuming that the

decision in Household International

Delaware Supreme Court's

requires a review of the facts and circumstances of each case, as is

expected. Mr. Liman stated that, accordingly, he did not believe

that Pantry Pride's strategy Was pased upon Success in court,

pecause a final judgment would not be obtainable gquickly enough to

affect the decisions it must make very soon. " He observed also that

purchase Rights had already accomplished 2 tactical

¢ ultimately could

the Note

purpose, because pantry Pride's uncertainty that i
mmitment

invalidate them had deterred Pantry pride from paying the co

optain firm

fees that would have permitted prexel Burnham tO

ointing out

Lipton agreed, P

R701301
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Note Purchase Rights, and the risk that the Company might

@at the
ﬁgaY tne Notes in cashb pecause of Pantry pride's threat not to
;0% ghem, created tremendous incentive for ehe arbitrage community

polimlt the amount of stock it tenders, thereby increasing Pantry
1s plended price if it determined to complete its offer.

Mr. Loomis agreed that the Board could

¢ with complete

l Iﬂ response toO questions,
0 antry Pride would ac

ot prudently assume that P

1
at;onallty, put stated that, assuming a S

cenario of gwo-thirds of

the company's stock being tendered, Pantry pridge and its advisors

|would pe unli

¢ could conclude that the

kely to proceed unless the

either would resign O would support rantry

gent directors
He noted that, with debt

r and asset sale program.

pre
pride's merge
| service of $150 million

that Pantry pride is seek

o $200 million per year, the discount from

ing would erode guickly during

(fyll value
the period rhat would be required to force a change in 2 majority of

the Board.
Responding to @ question from the chairman as to the directors’
pantry Pride were to acguire such a

L
|
[
f.
!
l

duties and responsibilities if

Mr. Liman advised that thg Board would have

majority stock position,
o all stockholders, as well as to the

" a continuing fiduciary duty t

public debt holders, and other

[
i
.L

1nst1tut;onal lenders

Company's
constituencies. Mr. Lipten agreed, noting that under the decisions
j¢ a conflict weré to arise between

of the Delaware supreme Court,

the interests of minority stockholders and these other
older

—_——

constituencies, on the one nand, and the interests of a stockh
that had knowingly created the conflict

such as Ppantry Pride
s not likely that the Boa

rd's

—, —_,

situation, on the other hand, it wa
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responsibility to Pantry Pride would Dbe held by a court to be
paramount as a matter of law, Accordingly, he advised, the
directors' obligation would continue to be to exercise their
pusiness Jjudgment. Mr. Rohatyn noted that, at that point, among the
matters that the Board might c¢onsider would be reduction or
eliminétion of dividends on the Common Stock to the exéent ‘such
action might be prudent in view of the Company's debt service
requirements.

Responding to a gquestion as to whether MacAndrews & Forbes was
prepared to supply additional funding, Mr. Lipton reiterated that
the advice given to the Board assumed throughout that required
funding could be made available, through Drexel Burnham or other
sources.,

Another director asked, in view of the fact tﬂat a second-step
merger appeared so critical to Pantry Pride's strategy, whether
consideration should be given to steps that would make such a merger
still more difficult to achieve. 1In response, Mr. Lipton noted that

such consideration was ongoing and that various alternatives would

be presented to the Board at a later date. Mr. Lipton advised,

however, that at this time management was recommending simply that
the Board determine that Pantry Pride's offer is grossly inadequate
and not in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders,
and that the MNote Purchase Rights and the restrictive covenants in
the securities issuable under the Company Offer constitute important
that should not be

protections for the Company's securityholders

eliminated to facilitate the Pantry Pride offer.

701302
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Mr. Lipton then reviewed with the directors the formal
resolutions proposed for adoption, and a further discussion ensued,
whereupon, upon motion duly made and seconded and unanimously
carried by roll call vote, it was:

RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors hereby
determines that. the tender offer for any and all
shares of the Company's Common Stock (the "Shares") at
$42 in cash per share (the "Pantry Pride Offer"),
commenced by a wholly-owned subsidiary of Pantry
Pride, Inc. ("Pantry Pride") on September 16, 1985, is
grossly inadequate and detrimental to the ©best
interests of the Company and 1its stockholders, and
that it is in the best interests of the Company and
its stockholders for the Company to take appropriate
actions to defeat the Pantry Pride Offer;

RESOLVED, that the proper officers of the Company
be, and each of them hereby is, authorized to file
with the Securities and Exchange Commission a
solicitation statement on Schedule 14D-9 to be

. disseminated to stockholders which shall contain the
Board's conclusions with respect to the Pantry Pride
Offer and its recommendation that such offer be
rejected;

RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors hereby
determines that the Note Purchase Rights declared by
the Company as a dividend on August 19, 1985
constitute important protections for the Company's
stockholders and that it would not be in the best
interests of the Company and its stockholders for the
Note Purchase Rights to be redeemed at this time;

RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors hereby
determines that the covenants contained in the
indenture for the Company's 11.75% Senior Subordinated
Notes Due 1995 and in the Certificate of Designation
of the Company's $9.00 Cumulative Convertible
Exchangeable Preferred Stock to be issued pursuant to
the Company's Offer to Purchase up to 10 million
shares (the "Company Offer") «constitute important
protections for the Company's securityholders and that
the waiver at this time of any such covenants would
not be in the best interest of the Company and its

securityhelders:;

RESOLVED, that the proper officers of the Company
be, and each of them hereby is, autpoplzeg and
directed to institute and continue any litigation or

1701304
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administrative action in connection with the Pantry
pride Offer and the Company Offer which they, with the
advice of counsel, deem necessary of desirable, and
are authorized to defend against any litigation orf
administrative action in connection with the Pantry
pride Offer and the Company Offer, and in connection
rherewith, to prepare, eXxecute, acknowledge, deliver
and file all such statements, applications,
certificates, undertakings, notices, consents and
other agreements with appropriate persons (including
governmental agencies), and to appear before officials
of any federal, state or local governmental agencies,
authorities, commissions ot similar bodies;

RESOLVED, that the proper officers of the Company
be, and each of them hereby is, authorized and
directed, for and on behalf of the Company, to take or
cause to be taken any and all action which they may
deem necessary or appropriate to communicate the
position of the Board of Directors, as set forth in
the foregoing resolutions, to the Company's stock-
holders, including, without limitation, the
dissemination of such position by means of press
releases and letters to stockholders of the Company,
the taking of any such action conclusively to evidence
the due authorization thereof by the Board of

Directors;

{ RESOLVED, that, in addition to the foregoing, the
! proper officers of the Company be, and each of - them
hereby 1is, authorized to undertake negotiations or
discussions, with such persons as they may deem
E necessary or desirable, which relate to or could
result in (i) an extraordinary transaction, such as a
| merger or recrganization, involving the Company or any
{ of its subsidiaries, (ii) a purchase, sale or transfer
of a material amount of the assets of the Company Ol
_ any of its subsidiaries, (iii) a tender offer for or
i other acquisition of securities by and/or of the
Company, or f(iv) a material change in the present
: capitalization or dividend policy of the Company; to
retain such persons as may be necessary or appropriate
to advise or assist the Company and its officers and
directors in connection with such negotiations, to
make proposals and ko enter into preliminary
agreements, subject Lo subsequent approval by the
Board, resulting from such negotiations, and to take
any and all other action in connection with such
negotiations as such officers may deem necessary of
desirable;

; . | 2701207
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RESOLVED, that disclosure at this +=ime with
respect to the parties to, and the possible rerms of
any proposals made in, or agreements which may result
from, any negotiations and discussions referred to in
the preceding resolution might jeopardize the
continuation of any such negotiations or discussions,
and that, accordingly, the officers of the Company be,
and they hereby are, authorized and directed not to
disclose publicly the terms of any such proposals or
the possible terms of any  such contemplaked
agreements, or the parties thereto, unless and until
an agreement in principle has been reached;

RESOLVED, that the proper officers of the Company
be, and each of them hereby 1is, authorized and
directed, for and on behalf of the Company, to take
all other action and to execute all other agreements
and documents as such officers deem to be necessary or
appropriate to effectuate each of the foregoing
resolutions and to carry out the purposes thereof, the
taking of any such action and the execution of any
such agreement or document conclusively to evidence
the due authorization thereof by the Board of
Directors;

RESOLVED, that all actions heretofore taken by
any officer or director of the Company in connection
with the matters authorized in the foregeing
resolutions be, and they hereby are, ratified and
approved in all respects.

The Chairman advised that it would next be in order to receive

" reports of actions by Committees of the Board of Directors. At the

Chairman's request, Judge Rifkind, Chairman of the Compeqsation
Committee, reported, pursuant to Article I, Section &, of the
By-laws, the minutes of the Committee's meetings held on July 23 and
August 26, 1985, which were ordered to be sealed for confidentiality
and annexed to the minutes as Exhibits D and E, respectively. At
the Chairman's request, Mr. Sayres. then reported to the Board the
action taken by the Executive Committee on August 1, 1985, approving
the Company's sale of certain inventory, tfademarks and intangibles

related to the Balmain product line, expected to produce a gain of

R701306

-13-




Pantry Pride bid. Mr. Lipton indicated that the opticns
available to the Board of Directors to deal with a junk bond
financed hostile tender offer were limited and that no tech-
nigue had been developed that was assured of being successful.
Mr. Lipton stated that management, together with Lazard Freres
"and the Company's legal advisors, had developed a program to
recommend to the Board of Directors that was designed to pro-

tect and maximize shareholder values.

Mr. Lipton stated that he would summarize for the
Board of Directors a management recommendation invelving a
two-part approach. The first part would be to provide the
shareholders with immediate benefit of a share repurchase
program for up to 5 million shares. The purchases would be
made in the marketplace from time to time at the discreticn
of management provided that the maximum amount to be spent
would not exceed $250 million. Mr. Lipton stated that Lazard
Freres had recommended that the Company adopt such a repur-
chase program and had advised the Company that the planned
repurchases would not have a material adverse effect on the
Company's financial capacity. Mr. Lipton stated that, although
he understood that some modifications of the Company's credit
agreements would be necessary to effect the buyback, manage-
ment had advised that these modifications were readily obtain-

able. Mr. Lipton stated that the stock repurchase program was
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designed to satisfy shareholder expectations of a market for

their shares and to remove arbitrage pressure on the stock.

The second aspect of the management recommendation,
Mr. Lipton explained, was designed to give the Board the
chance to protect shareholders against a low-priced transacticn
for any and all shares or against a two-tier transaction.
Mr. Lipton stated that the management was recommending for
adoption a Note Purchase Rights Plan which was designed to
achieve these objectives. He stated that the Plan is desigﬁed
to preserve the values of the Company for its stockholders.
Mr. Lipton noted that the Plan invelves distribution of one
Note Purchase Right for each outstanding share of common stock
as a dividend on the common stock. He said that until such
time as a person or group acquired beneficial ownership of
20% of the outstanding shares, the Rights would trade along
with the shares but that after such a 20% acquisition, the
rights certificates would be issued teo all shareholders except
for the 20% stockholder and that holders of rights certificates
would be entitled to purchase $65 principal amount of the
Company's 12% one-year notes, unless the 20% acquiror an-
nounced and promptly consummated an all cash acquisition at

565 a share or more,

Mr. Lipton then went on to review with the members

of the Board the memorandum that was presented to each director
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which contained a sumﬁary of the Plan and of the 12% ocne-year
notes issuable upon exercise of the Rights. Mr. Lipton stated
that drafts of the legal documentation necessary to implement
the Plan, which had been prepared by Wachtell Lipton and

reviewed by the Company's inside counsel, by its regqular out-
side counsel and by the Delaware law firm of Morris, Nichols,

Arsht & Tunnell, were present before each director.

Following his review of the Board memorandum, Mr.
Lipton described the Plan in terms of the context of what the
Rights are designed to accomplish. He stated that in the
event of an all cash cffer for the Company at $65 per share,
the Rights would do nothing. With respect to an offer at §45
per share, the Rights could be effective and could protect
against a low~priced second-step. The Rights were thus de-
signed to provide incentives to potential acquirors to pay a
full price or to negotiate with the Board, which would have
the bargaining power to negotiate a full price. Mr. Lipton
noted that the Rights are structured so that the one-year
notes would come before the Pantry Pride debt and that they
centained certain covenants which would make the notes come
due in the event a new acguiror took action which could de-
crease the creditworthiness of the Company or the value of
the notes. Mr. Lipton noted, however, that the Rights were

designed so as not to interfere with the Company's financing

flexibility.




]
i
'
&

Mr. Lipton stated that the Rights would not make
the Company takeover proof. He noted that the offeror could
condition his offer on a high minimum number of shares and
Rights being tendered; thus the cost imposed by the Rights
would be diminished. However, Mr. Lipton noted fhat in order
for such a strategy to be successful, the bidder would most

likely have to pay a full price, thereby achieving one of the

Plan's objectives.

In response to a question from Mr. Wilson, Mr. Lipton
said that‘the $65 exercise price was chosen by the Company
after consultation with Lazard Freres and that it represented
management's opinion of a reasonable asking price for the
Company's shares but that it was not an indication that the
Company was for sale at that price or at only that price or
at any other price. Mr. Lipton did note, however, that the
Rights would be viewed as a "poison pill" by institutional
investors, particularly in light of the $65 price in relation
to current market levels, and therefore that the Board might
be faced with a proxy fight to adopt shareholder resolutions
urging the Board to redeem the Rights. Lipton described simi-
lar proxy fights at Phillips Petroleum, Crown Zellerbach and

Rorer.

In response to a question, Mr. Lipton reviewed the

redemption feature of the Rights, pointing out that the Rights
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were redeemable by the Board of Directors at any time before

a person or group acguired beneficial ownership of 20% of

| the cutstanding shares. Thus, the Rights were designed not
to interfere with a white knight transaction prior to a 20%

} acquisition and to encourage potential bidders to negotiate

| with the Board of Directors. Mr. Lipton noted that the 20%

beneficial ownership level. approached the point where an ac-

guiror might be able to obtain de facto control of Revlon and

that a 20% trigger had been used by several other companies

that adopted rights plans. He stated that it would be unlikely

that someone could surprise the Company by becoming the bene-

ficial owner of 20% of the shares because of various filing

requirements under the securities and antitrust laws.

Mr. Lipton cencluded his summary of the rights by

! pointing out that although they may not prevent a takeover of
| the Company, they do give the Board of Directors additional

| time to develop alternatives. He noted that the Rights would
likely interfere with Pantry Pride's propeosed financing for
its offer, particularly in light of the fact that the one-
year notes would be senior to Pantry Pride's debt. In addi-
tion, he indicated that the Rights would create something of
a pricing dilemma for Pantry Pride because of the protecticn

they offer.

X Mr. Lipton then commented on the legality of the
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Note Purchase Rights Plan. He stated that the Plan is very
similar to a Note Purchase Rights Plan adopted by Phillips
Petroleum Company in February 1985. He noted that the Phillips
plan had been before the Delaware Chancery Court in a share-
holder derivative lawsuit brought against Phillips to enjein

a special meeting of Phillips stockholders scheduled to be

held to consider the recapitalization plan that emerged from
Phillips' settlement with Mesa Petroleum. Mr. Lipton stated
that, in the Phillips case, the Delaware Chancery Court refused
to enjoin the special meeting. Mr. Lipton noted that the
Phillips litigation is continuing and that it is possible

that it could result in a ruling on the legality of the Note
Purchase Rights under Delaware law. Mr. Lipton then noted

that a different kind of Rights Plan, although designed to
achieve similar objectives, was upheld by the Delaware Chan-

cery Court in the Household International case and is being

appealed to the Delaware Supreme Court. He alsc noted that

the courts in the Johnson Controls and Southwest Forest cases

refused éo grant injunctive relief against Rights Flans of

the Household variety. Mr. Lipton noted that the plans adopted
by Asarco and AMF had been struck down by federal courts ap-
plying New Jersey law, but that the Note Purchase Rights Plan
being proposed was different in concept and effect from the
plans that were held illegal in those cases. Mr. Lipton noted

that the Delaware law firm of Morris, Nichols, Arsht & Tunnell,
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which Wachtell Lipton had consulted with in preparing the

Rights Plan, was currently defending the litigation aéainst
the Phillips Rights Plan together with Wachtell Lipton. Mr.
Eipton stated that in the opinion 6f Wachtell, Lipton, Rosen
& Katz, the Note Purchase Rights Plan was legal and that the

adoption of such plan was within the Board's business judgment.

:Mr. Lipton then commented on the role of directors
in takeover matters. He stated that although there had been
a vigorous debate among legal scholars on the role of direct-
ors in takeover bids, that debate appears to be settled by

recent case law, particularly the Unocal and Household Inter-

national cases, with the result being thét directers do in
fact have a role to protect shareholders and that they are
not obligated to sit passively by in the face of a premium
bid. Mr. Lipton stated that the cases hold that the business
judgment rule applies to the actions of direetors in consider-
ing takeover bids. He explained.that the business judgment
rule provides that a decision of directors in their business
judgment - made in good faith, with a reascnable basis, and in
what they believe is in the best interests of shareholders --
will not be second-guessed by the courts and will not subject
directors to personal liability. Mr. Lipfon stated that the
decision whether to adopt fhe recommendations made by manage-
ment was within the Board's business judgment and would be

governed by the business judgment rule. He then stated that,
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in his opinion, the Directors had before them adequate informa-
tion to provide a reasonable basis to make a decision with
respect to the recommendations made by management. He stated
that the Directors' only obligation was to consider the mat-
ters presented in good faith and to make a decision, but if
they should desire more information pPrior to making their
decision, they were free to inquire and they should ingquire

to obtain the information they need.

A‘discussion then ensued concerning the management
recommendations as outlined by Mr. Lipton. Mr. Wilson asked,
as to the position of the Board of Directors, should Pantry
Pride commence an offer conditioned upen redemption of the
Note Purchase Rights and end up with 70% of the stock tend-
ered. Mr. Lipton stated that the Board of Directors would
have toc make a determiﬂation at that time as to the appro-
priate course of action. In any event, Mr. Lipton stated,
the Board of Directors would have time to make a decision as
to what would be in the best interests of shareholders -

time that would not have existed but for the Rights.

Mr. Rohatyn then commented that although he person-
ally was not enambred with the Note Purchase Rights, they
should be viewed as necessary to protect against the evil of
a takeover bid at a grossly inadequate price. Responding to

a question, Mr. Rohatyn commented that if the Rights were to
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become exercisable for Notes, the result could be a liguida-
tion of the Company, but that the Company could assess the
alternatives prior to the 20% acquisition and determine
what course would be in the best interest of shareholders.
He stated thét the $65 price was not intended to be the only
sales price that would be acceptable to the Company but just
a reasonable asking price and that it should not imply that

the Company could not receive fairness opinions at other prices.

Mr. Lipton responded to a question from directors
as, to why the rights of a 20% acquiror would become null and:
void upon such 20% acquisition by stating that this feature
was necessary to achieve the purpose of the Rights. Otherwise,
Mr. Lipton stated, an acquiror could in effect force its own
greenmail. He noted that Carl Icahn attempted to do precisely
that in the Phillips Petroleum situation before he was advised
that the Phillips rights issﬁed to a 209 acquiror would have
become null and veid. Responding to another question from a
director, Mr. Lipton pointed out that in his opinion it was
net likely that there would be a frivelous acquisition of
20%. He stated that it would not be in the economic interest
of an acguiror to play "chicken" with the Board of Directors
at that level of investment. He also noted that in most cir-
cumstances fhe Company would have ample notice of such a 20%
acquisition because of filing requirements under the antitrust

and securities laws.
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Judge Rifkind then indicated that he would like to
make a statement. Judge Rifkind stated that he had, as the
Board was aware, a relationship with MacAndrews & Forbes and
Mr. Perelman that had lasted for quite some time. Judge Rifkin
stated that he had been on the MacAndrews & Forbes board until
this morning when he resigned on learning that Pantry Pride
was prepared to make a hostile takeover bid against Revlon.

He also recounted his long association with Revlon. Judge
Rifkind stated that he was aware and the Board members should
be aware that the Note Purchase Rights Plan would be charac-
terized as a "poison pill". He said that as a general propo-
sition he was not, and he did not believe anybody was, in
favor of such poison pill devices. However, he stated that
in his view the alternative - the dismantling of Revlon at an
inadequate price so that Pantry Pride could make a "quick
buck" - was a far worse alternative. He stated that in his
opinion Revlon had a bright future in which significant value
could be created for its shareholders. He also stated that
Revlon could continue to benefit its employees, customers,
suppliers and the other constituencies which it serves.
Accordingly, Judge Rifkind stated that the Note Purchase Rights

Plan, even if it were a "pecison pill", was a necessary medicine

-in light of the situation, and he strongly recommended its

adoption by the Board of Directors.
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After further discussion, the resolutions presented
to the Board were moved for approval. Mr. Lipton reviewed
such resclutions with the Board of Directors. It was noted
that the resolutions provided for a committee comprised of
Messrs. Bergerac, Glucksman and Zjilkha to review implementa-~
tion of the resolutions prior to public announcement of
the actions taken in light of potential developments. It was
the consensus of the Board, however, that Mr. Bergerac should
cancel his scheduled 5:00 P.M. meeting with Mr. Perelman,
unless there were further developments. All the resolutions

were unanimously adopted.
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